SERVIc,

Helendale Community Services District

& ®

$ )

Sod 2 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, CA 92342
3.l g

HELENDALE REGULAR BOARD MEETING

Thursday, October 2, 2025, at 6:00 PM

REMOTE ACCESSIBILITY

This meeting of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District is Open to the public both in
person at the District Office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, California. join remotely: www.zoom.com
or Zoom Ap; click on “Join”. Enter Meeting ID 463 173 8547 and Passcode: HCSD. Use your computer audio or join by
phone with the directions below. Phone-In Instructions: Call 1-669-900-6833, enter Meeting ID 463 173 8547,
Participant ID or press #, and enter Audio Password/Passcode: 872103.

Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance
1. Approval of Agenda

2. Public Participation

Anyone wishing to address any matter pertaining to District business listed on the agenda or not, may do so at this time. However,
the Board of Directors may not take action on items that are not on the agenda. The public comment period may be limited to three
(3) minutes per person. Any member wishing to make comments may do so by filling out the speaker’s card in person or using the
“raise the hand” feature on Zoom.

3. Consent Items
a. Approval of Minutes:
Regular Board Meeting of September 18, 2025
b. Bills Paid Report

4. Reports
a. Directors’ Reports
b. General Manager’s Report

Regular Business:
5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors Expense Reports

6. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Landscape Updates for Community Center

7. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding District Electronic Sign Policy and Placement of
Signage on District Property

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Water Pipeline for Treatment and Blending

9. Discussion Only Regarding Review of Resolution 2012-06: A Resolution of the Board of Directors
of the Helendale Community Services District Establishing a Policy for District Reserves

Other Business
10. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)

Closed Session

11. Public Employee Appointment
[Government Code Section 54957(b)]
Title: General Manager

12. Conference with Labor Negotiator
(Government Code Section 54957)
Designated representative: Steven M. Kennedy, General Counsel
Unrepresented Employee: General Manager


http://www.zoom.com/

Agenda: October 2, 2025

13. Conference with Real Property Negotiators
(Government Code Section 54956.8)
Property: 28685 Helendale Road
APN 0466-181-43
District Negotiator: Kimberly Cox
Negotiating Parties: Lee Graham
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

14. Report of Closed Session Iltems

15. Adjournment

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services,
that is sought in order to participate in the above agenized public meeting should be directed to the District’s General Manager’s office at (760) 951-0006
at least 24 hours prior to said meeting. The regular session of the Board meeting will be recorded. Recordings of the Board meetings are kept for the Clerk
of the Board's convenience. These recordings are not the official minutes of the Board meetings.



fﬁ“ﬁsi Helendale Community Services District

HELENDALE

Date: October 2, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
SUBJECT: Agenda item #3
Consent Items

CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting September 18, 2025
b. Bills Paid Report



¢ERVie,

LY
I)-}__
=

coMMU
10141510

Helendale Community Services District

| HELENDALE |
Date: October 2, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette, Clerk of the Board

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3a
Minutes from Regular Board meeting 9/18/2025




A%t Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District
Eodl 2 REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Date: September 18, 2025
Time: 6:00 PM
Meeting called to order by: President Ron Clark
Attendance
President Ron Clark KPresent CAbsent X In Person [J Remote
Vice President George Cardenas | ®Present CAbsent In Person [0 Remote
Director Gail Guinn XPresent OAbsent In Person CJ Remote
Director Artie DeVries KPresent OAbsent X In Person [J Remote
Director Billy Rosenberg KPresent CAbsent In Person 0 Remote

Staff Members Present
Kimberly Cox, General Manager; Alex Aviles, Wastewater Operations Manager; Craig Carlson, Water

Operations Manager; Cheryl Vermette, Administrative Services Manager

Consultants/Guests
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel

Christopher Porter, Policy Director — Office of San Bernardino County First District Supervisor Paul Cook

Members of the public
There were two members of the public in attendance and one member attending via Zoom.

. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Discussion None

Motion Director Rosenberg made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.

Second Director DeVries

Vote
Vice President Ron Clark Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director George Cardenas Yes 0 No [ Absent O] Abstain
Director Gail Guinn Yes O No [ Absent O Abstain
Director Artie DeVries X Yes O No 0 Absent [J Abstain
Director Billy Rosenberg Yes O No O Absent [J Abstain

2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Dawn Kelly, local business owner —explained that about a year ago the signage for the businesses
on Jordan Rd. were removed. Since they were removed business on that road have seen a decline.
She requested permission to utilize the CSD’s property to put a sign up for the businesses.
Al Nederhood, Board Member for MWDOC introduced himself as a candidate for the open CSDA
seat and asked for the Boards support.

3. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Minutes: Special Board Meeting of September 4, 2025

Board Minutes 9-4-2025



b. Bills Paid Report
Discussion None
Motion Director Guinn made the motion to approve the consent items as presented.
Second Director DeVries

Vote
Vice President Ron Clark Yes O No O Absent [ Abstain
Director George Cardenas X Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director Gail Guinn Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director Artie DeVries Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director Billy Rosenberg Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
REPORTS

a. Directors’ Reports

Director Guinn reported that she attended the CSDA Annual Conference, where she
attended sessions that emphasized the value of strategic planning and participated in a
session focused on General Manager performance evaluations. She spoke with CJ Porter
regarding road delineators and the grade separation project, and also inquired with Lena
Kent of BNSF about establishing a dedicated emergency contact number for situations when
trains block the tracks. Additionally, she attended the Flag Football Super Bowl and the
Concert in the Park, both of which she described as excellent events. She also took part in
the Mojave Water Agency tour.

Director DeVries shared that she attended the CSDA Conference and found it highly
informative. She also participated in the "Big Meeting," attended the Concert in the Park—
where she noted the need to address restroom conditions—and joined the Mojave Water
Agency tour.

Director Cardenas: Reported that he attended the CSDA annual conference and attended Al
and cybersecurity sessions as well as the session on the Brown Act. He will provide a written
report in an upcoming agenda packet.

Director Rosenberg: Noted that although he was unable to attend the Concert in the Park,
feedback he received from attendees was overwhelmingly positive. He attended the CSDA
Annual Conference and appreciated the keynote speech, networking opportunities, and
educational sessions. He highlighted the session on rogue Board members and expressed
pride in the Helendale Board. He also attended the Flag Football Super Bowl and was very
impressed.

President Clark: Commented that the Concert in the Park was good.

General Managers Report
The Fall Thrift Store Sale is scheduled for tomorrow. We have received notification of the second PFAS
payment. Senator Ochoa-Bogh will be hosting an Open House on October 1st at 6:30 p.m. at the
Community Center. Permits for fire safety and tenant improvements for the Water Shop have been
successfully pulled, and the fire sprinkler installation is currently underway. Lastly, the 9/11 concert was
a huge success.
Wastewater Operations Manager Aviles gave the wastewater report. Big Sky Electric has installed a new
disconnect for the headworks. Staff has continued work on the bar screen at the headworks to improve

Board Minutes 9-4-2025



functionality. Two broken toilets at the condos have been replaced with new units. Atlas Environmental
collected the third-quarter monitoring well samples as part of our ongoing compliance efforts. Staff also
attended the DAMS training event and technical competition hosted in Crestline, gaining valuable
hands-on experience. Additionally, a new Operator-in-Training (OIT) will be starting on September 29.
JWC came out to perform a start-up and troubleshoot the barscreen, and they were able to get it
working in automatic mode. However, the screen failed overnight and was found non-operational this
morning. Garrett and | toured the City of Barstow and the BNSF Treatment Plant to observe their
operations and gather insights. Additionally, a drunk driver ran through our fence at the Alfalfa fields,
causing significant damage. Repairs to the fence are currently underway.

Administrative Services Manager Vermette gave the administration update. There were 21 new owners,
10 new tenants, 5 accounts that went back to the landlord and 3 trash only accounts for the month of
August. A comparison of new accounts by year was presented. Nine deposit letters were mailed. The
average monthly bill for August was $156.86. Thrift store sales for August totaled $27,982. A chart of
how customers make their payments was also presented — the majority of customers pay on the website
(28%) followed by autopay from their checking or savings account (25%), the remaining customers pay
a variety of different ways including bill pay, in person, mail, night drop, pay by phone, and text.
General Manager Cox presented the financial report. The District has a total cash balance of $9,567,200.
The water department has $4,458,275; the sewer department has $3,722,435; the park department has
$786,751; the property rentals have a balance of $91,222; and the solid waste department has $138,609.
The District currently has $4,943,039 in CA Class; $2,275,608 in CBB Trust; $1,148,419 in LAIF;
$1,028,147 in CBB checking, and $193,294 in Flagstar.

Regular Business:
5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports

Discussion: None
Motion: Vice President Cardenas made the motion to accept the Directors’ expense

reports.

Second: Director Guinn

Vote:
Vice President Ron Clark Yes O No O Absent [ Abstain
Director George Cardenas Yes O No ] Absent [ Abstain
Director Gail Guinn Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director Artie DeVries Yes O No [J Absent [J Abstain
Director Billy Rosenberg Yes O No O Absent O Abstain

6. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of the District Calendar for 2026 and
Closure of the Office for December 26, 2025
Discussion: The calendar is a useful tool that serves as a resource for outlining district events. It
provides a clear overview of scheduled activities and important dates relevant to the district.
It is designed to be flexible, allowing for adjustments and updates as needed. The Board
reviews this tool annually to ensure its accuracy and relevance.
The calendar lists all Board-related items. The first meeting in January and July are dark.
District holidays are highlighted in dark blue for easy identification.
The Concerts in the Park are held from May through October. Clean-Up Days are scheduled
twice a year - in April and October. April 1st marks the 19th anniversary of the District

Board Minutes 9-4-2025



assuming operations from the County. Kimberly’s retirement party is scheduled for April 3,
2026.

The Board discussed closing the office on December 26, 2025. The Board decided to close the
office on that day with pay for employees. They also discussed hosting the April 20, 2026
ASBCD meeting. They decided with all of the changes happening around that time it would
be best to pass on the hosting. GM Cox asked if they wanted to hold a Board meeting on the
second meeting in November and the second meeting in December due to the close proximity
to the holidays. They also affirmed the change in the yard sale dates due to the conflict with
the April cleanup day.

Motion: Director Rosenberg made the motion to adopt the District calendar and close the
office on December 26",

Second: Director Guinn

Vote:
Vice President Ron Clark Yes 0 No OJ Absent O Abstain
Director George Cardenas Yes O No O Absent (J Abstain
Director Gail Guinn Yes O No O Absent O Abstain
Director Artie DeVries Yes 0 No [0 Absent O Abstain
Director Billy Rosenberg Yes O No [ Absent OJ Abstain

Discussion Only Regarding Speaker System at the Park

Discussion: A request was brought to the Board regarding sound equipment. Rolling speakers were
purchased for $10,000 in 2022 but are not loud enough for concerts. They are used regularly for
sports events. The band from the September Concert had a good quality sound system, a system
similar to theirs would cost approximately $25,000. The band leader would assist with purchasing
the equipment. Our announcer for Concerts in the Park is capable of operating the sound
equipment for an additional fee. The cost seems reasonable for the quality. The park has a current
balance of $786,000. The Board asked Staff to find out if the system purchased by the District a few
years ago would incorporate with this new system. They would like Staff to get three quotes and
bring this item back.

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Review of SWOT Analysis and Strategic Planning
Schedule

Discussion: The Board requested to bring this item back for discussion. Staff is seeking
additional input from the Board and would like input on how the Board would like to
proceed. Gm Cox presented the SWOT analysis compiled from previous board input.
Director Guinn suggested additional items including natural disasters as a threat and
developing political relationships as an opportunity she also emphasized opportunities for
strengthening relationships with various entities and supporting community volunteerism.
Director DeVries suggested adding Helendale Bluff Hydro Electric as an opportunity. GM Cox
explained that the SWOT analysis would be condensed into goals and objectives. The board
members discussed whether to involve the community in the SWOT analysis process and

Board Minutes 9-4-2025



ultimately decided that the process has been transparent with opportunities for public
input. Next staff will synthesize the SWOT analysis into goals and objectives with a draft
strategic plan expected by December. The ad hoc committee will participate in developing

the plan.

Other Business
9. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)

Signage for businesses on Jordan Rd.
President Clark called for a brief break at 7:13 pm. Closed session began at 7:19 pm

Closed Session

10. Public Employee Appointment
[Government Code Section 54957(b)]
Title: General Manager

Closed Session ended at 8:05 pm
11. Report of Closed Session Items

Legal Counsel Kennedy reported that the Board met in closed session to discuss the agendized item,
there was no reportable action.

12. Adjournment
President Clark adjourned the meeting at 8:07 pm.

Ron Clark, President Cheryl Vermette, Clerk of the Board
The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of Directors. A

digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon request at the
Helendale CSD office.

Board Minutes 9-4-2025



S

Eﬁ%i Helendale Community Services District
S B i SR AP

DATE: October 2, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Andrea Chavis, Customer Service Lead

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3b
Consent Items: Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Updated Report Only. Receive and File.

STAFF REPORT:
Staff issued 27 checks, 21 Bank Drafts, and 5 EFT’s totaling $216,762.83.
Total Cash Available 8/15/25 8/29/25
Cash $9,588,.507.15 $9,592,272.82
Checks, DFT’s/EFT’s Issued $92,540.32 $119,157.40
Paid by Payroll Draft $58,583.24 $97,605.43
INVESTMENT REPORT:
The Investment Report shows the status of the District funds invested as of 8/31/25.
interest Rate Interest iIncome
CA CLASS* 4.3238% $51,416.85 Fiscal Year to date
CBB Trust 4.02% $60,319.01 Year to date
LAIF 4.257 $37,745.06 Year to date




Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

Helendale CSD Transaction Detail
% 4 Issued Date Range: 09/15/2025 - 09/29/2025

Cleared Date Range: -

Issued

Date Number Description Amount Type Module
Bank Account: 211102187 - CBB Checking

09/16/2025 29134 Helendale Community Services District -221.98 Check Accounts Payable
09/16/2025 29135 Helendale Community Services District -3,360.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29136 ACI Payments, Inc -56.50 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29137 Beck Oil Inc -2,492.07 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29138 County of San Bernardino -100.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29139 Frontier Communications -104.74 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 25140 Frontier Communications -81.49 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29141 Home Depot Credit Services -1,413.82 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29142 Infosend, Inc -2,175.06 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29143 Lakeside Heating and Air Conditioning -79.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 29144 Lowe's Inc. -256.49 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 Uline, Inc -8,278.70 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 Verizon Wireless -686.20 Check Accounts Payable
09/17/2025 Verizon Wireless -136.41 Check Accounts Payable
09/18/2025 Starting Line Advisory -1,845.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/18/2025 Burrtec Waste Group, Inc -10,392.22 Check Accounts Payable
09/18/2025 Frontier Communications -176.19 Check Accounts Payable
09/18/2025 Geo-Monitor, Inc. -294.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/18/2025 P Powershop Inc -754.52 Check Accounts Payable
09/24/2025 Mojave Resource Management, LLC -66,000.15 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 29154 All American Fence Erectors -9,855.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 29155 County of San Bernardino, Solid Waste Mgmt. Div. -915.40 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 FNBO -2,677.02 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 Lakeside Heating and Air Conditioning -984.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 Pyro Spectaculars Inc. -38.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 29159 San Bernardino County Fire Protection District -958.00 Check Accounts Payable
09/25/2025 29160 Sierra Analytical Labs, Inc -207.50 Check Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 57 Cal PERS -162.35 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 Cal PERS -210.91 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 359 Cal PERS -250.00 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002860 Cal PERS -5,300.53 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002861 California State Disbursement Unit -230.76 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002862 Cal PERS -2,623.75 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002863 Cal PERS -848.26 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002864 Cal PERS -5,017.92 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002865 Cal PERS -1,622.29 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002866 Cal PERS -1,309.49 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002867 Cal PERS -1,344.98 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002868 Cal PERS -14.88 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002869 State of California - Franchise Tax Board -150.00 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002870 Hartford Life -173.66 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002871 Cal PERS -10,395.08 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002872 TASC -1,031.22 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002873 Internal Revenue Service -1,240.82 Bank Draft Accounts Payable
09/26/2025 DFT0002874 Internal Revenue Service -2,246.87 Bank Draft Accounts Payable

09/26/2025 DFT0002875 Employment Development Center -873.33 Bank Draft Accounts Payable



Bank Transaction Report

Issued
Date

09/26/2025
09/26/2025
09/25/2025
09/29/2025
09/17/2025
09/18/2025
09/26/2025

Number
DFT0002876
DFT0002877

EFT0005577

EFT0005579

Description
Internal Revenue Service
Employment Development Center
SCE ACH Park Wellheads Acct 700448234519
SCE ACH Sod Farm Acct 700255337588
To record Sales Tax Pmt #2 - 2nd Quarter
To record PERS GASB 68 Pyable
Payroll EFT

Amount
-7,278.51
-2,789.34

-16.45
-2,082.86
-2,168.63

-350.00
-52,490.48

Type
Bank Draft
Bank Draft
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT

Bank Account 211102187 Total: (53)

Report Total: (53)

Module
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
Payroll

-216,762.83

-216,762.83



Arewwung

- :a8uey ajeq panss)

£8'79L°91Z-
¥66°L19'Y
9t'6ESPIT-
£'S09°L6-
unowy

£8°29L'9TZ-
£8'29L'912-
wnowy

£8Z9L'912-
€8'29L'912-
unowy

€5

€S
Le

4
uno)

€S

€S
wno)

€S

wno)

‘|er0) poday
143
aE1T)
Yelq yueg |joshed
adA) uonoesues)

:jejof voday

:[e30] woday

FUBP3G3 - 883 W USE3 O0OTTT-66 66
JUNoOMNY Yyse)

FUpPaYD 983 £8TZ0TT1LC
WNoDY yueg

yoday uondesuel) yueg



SERV/p,

N,
I):‘_
=)

COMMU
.§; <
12141510

Helendale Community Services District

| HELENDALE |
DATE: October 2, 2025
TeY: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #5
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of Directors’ Expense Reports

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
None.

STAFF REPORT
This matter is at the discretion of the Board. Included herein for the Board’s consideration are
expense reports submitted since the last Board meeting.

Fiscal Impact: As outlined on the attached Expense reports
Possible Motion: Approve Expense Reports as presented
Attachments: Spreadsheet of cumulative meetings

Director’s Expense Reports
Written Report from Director Cardenas



9 T 0 0 1 Z z 0 0 dwo)-uonN SO .
1€ € 9 v v 9 z ¥ z pajesuadwo)

dwon-uo
1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 wo)j-uoN sopsig . | Biogussey
LY Z 7 ¥ ¥ L 8 z ¥ L z pajesuadwo)

n_ 3
1z Fa z 0 4 z v 0 1 £ 1 wo)-uonN i wuino
19 L 6 Z 9 v 6 ¥ € z ¥ pajesuadwo)
74 £ S z z 1 z dwod-uoN| 3uapisald s
91 [ z 0 Z 1 Z pajesuadwo) NIA
T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dwod-uoN

juspisald e
9g ¥ v S € z z 12 ¥ S paiesuadwo) B e
WIOL | SZ0Z6 | ST0Z8 | SzoTi | Szoz9 | szozs SZ0Zv | SzoZE | szoze G202 T | ¥zozer | vzoz 1T | veoz o1 adA) 3L awepn

SHLNOW-ZT SNIT10Yd

140d34 NOILVYSN3IdINOD QivOo4g




Wm% abeajipy
| buyesw pieog ixau ay) Je pajuase.d aq o) pesinbad 110dai [BqieA 10 UBlUAN . pieog 8y} JO 88)ILULIOD 20H PY |
| $10108.10 J0 preog ay) Aq pancidde-aid Bunaapy -y . 1o1s1g 0} pajejes weiboid Buluiel] /leuiwas/asusiapuo’) 5|
[ 10 suoiloun] BuiAjoAUl Sisjlew ul $1S818)Ul Yylim uoieziueBio/m Bunasyy ip . pieog £9106 e uouonejuasaidey :q|
_ QsoHbBunoaye uonaipsunl/m Apoq [eiapad 10 8jelS ‘|e007 JO Bunaaj | , luaAg/bunas|y 21gnd ie uoneluasalday (9
_ 1ou1s1g AQ psulelas JUBNSUOD 10 ABUIONE ‘si0)ipne/m Bulles|y iH L JuaA3 211and g
_ suonesedQ 1ouysig Buipiebai aaubisaq 10 ND/Mm Bulles|y 5 10y umoig Aq pausanob Buas|y o1gng v
l salobajes asuadxy |
aleq ainjeubls
gZeglel ¢ 0S.% ] 0% 03 om_mm.wmv $
sbunaapy asuadxg _ "
|eloL mE_u_MM_\.._._. sjqesuadwon | 19410 m__h.ww%.w._ _m_mmE |e1oL “_.M_a_u_.\r.__
) jO #ejol lejol
Hjsuag 21gnd|
jo uonduosag
3 | sjes esealq soA $ $| ¢ m 8dualsjuo)d vaso uang §2/42/80
Wjsuag dliand
jo uonduosaq
3 | sies aseaiy g2t | $ $| $ 92uaIvu0) YASD WeA3l gziezmo
Hjauag dlgnd
jo uonduasaq
3 | ses eseald saA | $ $ $ Sl aduaIsjuod YasDd WaAdl gzigz/80
Wjsusg algnd
jo uonduosag
Y | s1eg esealy sap | $ $ $ Bunes|y pieog WarT ! gz0z/20/80
Hjsueg aljand
" jo uonduosaq
| |
©) | 21es eseaid _ saA $ ¢ ¢ WD UM 133N sA3 52/90/80
|
KioBaled | N/A 118D asuadx3y
asuadx3 auoyg ‘z; asinquiay 10410 Buibpo s|eap =TI uojjeuejdx3/uondiosaq asusdxg aleq
Blupug pouad hed ss8line( BIuY awepy

H3HONOA 3SN3IdX3 HIgW3IW a4vO04d LOIH.1SIa SIOIAHIS ALINNWINOD ITVANI13H

J\IB /| abey



9 G'69 abeayiyy

Buiiesw pieog 1xeu ay) Je pajuasa.d 8q o} pasinbai jodsi EqiEA 10 UBIILM .

pleog ay} J0 9o)IWL0D J0H PY 4

$1010841 JO pieog au} Aq peaoidde-aid Bunaapy -y

. JausIg 0 pelejal weiboid Bujurel] /feuiluas/souaieucy) (3

—

10 suonouny Buiajoaur SIajjew ul sjsaidjul upm uoneziuehio/m bunaspy i

. Pieog £0 109 Je uouonejuasaidey :q

asoHbundaye uonoipsuni/m Apoq [eiepa 10 81elg ‘|edo jo bunaap ||

. Waag/Bunaaiy ognd 1e uonejussaiday 0|

1011510 AQ paurelal JUB)INSUOD 10 ABUIONE "SIONpnE/m Buijeap :H

« UBAZ Dland g

|
I
—

d43HONOA 3ISNIdX3 H3dW3IW @4vOo4d LOIHLSIA STJIAHIS ALINNWINOD ITVANI1IH

suoneladQ 1ouisig Buiprebal asubisaq 1o N5/m Bunaayy -9 10y umoug Aq pausanob Bupasy oligng -y
salobajen esuadxgy
sleq ainjeubig
GZ/L1/60 T B 0L
v2°0/93 009 v ,* 0s 0$ 0% ¥L0L$
sBunsapy asuadx3y
elol m:__uwmw_,_. a|qesuadwo) | Jayl0 mﬁw%ﬂ,_ s|ea|y |ejoL _w_m_ﬁ_.uﬂ
) | jo#eioL 1ejoL
Hjsuag oliand
jo uonduasag
; . _
3 | sjes esealy so\ $ $| 8 o9 ﬁ MOYS peoy YMIN A3 gzio1/60
lausg dgnd
o uonduosaq
| T
O | e sseaid on $ g $ e | Mmojsieg Bunesyy 4SNg WoAT zozivore0
, Hjeusg oljand
jo uonduosaq
Y ies eseald soA $ $ $ _ Bunssiy pieog WBAT gzmore0
[ |
Hgusg alqnd
jo uonduasaqg
©) es esealy sep $| $ $ NS UM jeay WeA  gzrz0/60
| !
yauag oqnd
jo uonduasaq
3 | ues esealy sa\ $ $ w_ 7 JousI8uOD YASD WeAd gzoz/ez/e0
AioBajes [ N/A 11BD asuadx3y |
ssuadxg | euoug N/A ®sinquiiay 1410 Buibpo sjeapy SalN ,_ uoneue|dx3/uondiasag ssuadxg aleq
Biupu3 pouad Aed saluAR(Q aIlyY aurey

“ﬁl o) JMI abed



@,

mummng . —m— - - e ——— i i e A
r & M%%o&c .En.om vxmc mS e w&?&m?a 5q 0y paanbal podal jEqiar 1o uepum | ]

pieog ayj jo Sapiuluod D0H u,m,‘.,,m._

kG poAGIdE 510 BUOS SR e T m.&w_ﬂ% m“kcﬁmwwwmwﬁmmww
-~ giojsen() 40 pieog syl AQ paAiadE-S] S e . Evom,w_ HOG 1B LU L
= j5 SUDIAUN BUIAJAUL S ) S155J5)U1 I UGHEZIUEBI0/M BUGSIN | ) I = | 1A /BRI HANd T DDA - uw
%%!u:%ﬂ%ﬁm@%:%ﬂ Ko e35p5 4 10 BIEIS 1901 J0 BUTSSN | i o .___.,Em.w._ea%a ww
e B HUNSIE AG PAUIEIS) JUERNSUDD 10 KGWIGHE 'S sioppne/m Mcmw%,m - ! . By umeig) AQ PaWIBAGE BURON MANd
e e 336 1A ut SP——— . )
[T SuceRdo _om,m_a.mjﬁbmm@_ wmcmamo - E@ﬁ = “Shuotowy esusdnd o - Samuis R

) m_...sm:c.m
TTaen

;éﬁ%saiw®®®®; - T e o,

w.iv e e e } - il
R ﬂ e v.mmh&ﬁ | Buibpo | | somA
W:-NW:&EOU | .—Eﬂo —ﬁaOP _W»Nﬁs _N.-.OP. _Mwwo.—r

_ _| jogiEol | 1ol ] “ :

“yauag o._a:&

o o vondsa) %m \® \ |

Ewum,

]

Wauag o_a.:m_

mm\\r\b@\,w;%\\@\i W, _ _,,
| Hugsosu W

,

{

| .ww cc_..c:umoc_ m\ ,
ool 7018

P a et &

Tyauag u._n:a

q | | [ . S W g W
v

| jo :a_sn:0mwc_
PN i \amg - _,_Q,NEE

h i

e
" 7
/ !

! ————
NS SR

“Kiobaed | WA TiED _Z;. mm..:ﬁE_am_ ww,_:a“wm |
mmcmaxm m Uoyd 3y |

- ..4; S, LIS
1
1

m_m.vs_

| awrq
J— _M ...O:mc.w_n:..ﬁ:osatummc ew:vnxw _

et

*.

|
B = .,;@aaeriz;ze::so iz
.W,g \_m.% ) s Q Brupu3 pouad Aed ‘ ,

GERELE
 43IHOAOA mmzwaxm YISWIW QYOS LORI1SIA SIONGIS ALINNWINGD FTVANTT




#5559 sbealN

;9 ebe it , . ST preog 84) J0 waEEcu  20H PY u_
mc;..au_.t En_cm tmc mE e Hﬁ%ﬂ“@ﬂg mmw mwumm“ww L MMMW“ mmwgwwamm hﬂ»ﬂtﬂ‘_\_ vﬂ - y : 5:7_ a6 ?xm.m B iB01y Uil t.m.m:.w.m\ww%wﬁ wMoJ u
O o - o— # o~ ﬂ-ﬁ‘u

a;:;3%s§;£@gagg;aw&aaﬂ&%%&@ﬁgﬁgg: T tmmwshwwmwwaza.

~—@gHHOUIGaE GoIFPSINM poq Teiopa 10 115 OO JOBUISIN 1} IS = jion3 SKand 8|

P “puisiq kg PauIEIe) JUEINSUGD 30 Kauione ‘Sioupne/Mm BUNSSA I .5 pauIBAGE rw;wcs_ amang d;

e .,m:!o.iﬁ.z&o _m_,_;m.@ Bliipiebal vmom_mwo 1S NOM mca.ums. o -
. T e o s m@:&o-ﬁu@ Rﬂﬁhm ) A . R . S s e Ay g

- ma%\mum\m o mm%RMQy

é%%%ﬁ s ey QIL) R

|
i I R R _ i m
E e asuadx3y | Buibpo m | so i
, €30 po |
, ﬁ.o: m.:__uwu .: agesuaduiod  PWO | e} |sjeal 18104 10l f h
\ " pwmor | wor | B R .

r T s i o
— ._ Y - w_: S ,x o wm e T\ “ En;ﬁ
M : >\ — X _ I 1_ S M Uﬁ? @U _ yauag 9.9:&_

I w\S Vit e a\%\

_
|
ke s - {
!

83,\&,& mﬁﬁﬁ Szh)
DT A AT QI [oes? aphoa il s

‘\%\,\Q \w &\S@Qwﬂ w , \5% \3 Q%\mew\\:\:\@ | A“wu._hmm,_twé_ \N\Aw
a%\f\ Aq\m\wu\.g\m waad) \ /
I8

?@\é&@&zs&kﬁ:ééé_

Jo voRduOs3(]

G prr 0 Sl oS B

|
‘ i

oyeCl

H.Oﬁ.w—mu- .Zr_r :&U | 254N | ‘
_ QE_Q
asuadx3 | auoyd .ZW N_ .

T e T B T e Ty a
i IMNQI\W. WNI\ .-..\. \ XH ) m:..“:w e hﬂ& \3@ \ \ Q w . _
 ¥3IHONOA mmzmaxm HISWIN QHYOS 1D141SIA SFINYIS Ezmﬁ___‘g .&Ezﬁwi

_
sieaip _4 SajN w cos_m:m_auw.:a_-n:um&n @m:.waxw | P

[ _A*_H—--



m S G9 ‘abediN

m::oo& n‘_

i SuonoUN) BUINDOAUI §1

saud 3G 0} vm\i.w& [oda) [eqiaA 10 UBLUM . |

1...cm ol 3y [E paa

~gjopend JO pieog 2w

BHEL Ul SjSaiaul JIm UOHBZIVEDIO/M

BUSON 1]

kg pascidde-aid Buioap Ml

pieog a0 wmz_EEou D0H PY - e
B0y Bukiel Em ,.Bur.&ﬁcou m_

. -u:?_c i tmﬁ_ﬁ Em..
. je ucuonauassiday “a|

, preog £IL0G

T gSHHbU Jmmw.m;&ﬁum_._@ﬁ.@ap.@uuﬁ..ﬂowiw €501 Jo BUNSaN _”_w‘ . JUBABURSH 3 FqGnd 18 U0 Aiasaida] D
o T pnsid A pauIEla) WERNSUGD 5 KSUIOHE Si0ppne/m BUlSSH Hr B CjiaAg 24and m.:
_ N = «co_wmamo mﬂw_@ m? Emm@mwwcm_w.m@s 10 NOM mczwmi 51N _u.q EsEm Aq vawmmom cc_uuez u.,.mw.a <_
T S e w..!. o " Sa1a60 Eu‘,,‘.w_.a&.xm. B T B
= ey ,:1.1- e B e =S Ll B R wé?:n l : |
e %‘NQ — R ..o A BTN
S u\ i m  osmpy T ” m‘bn
Q7075 x‘ E s\ Sh1ls LD .
o i Bl s WY 7 o SRR S =
",, _Eo_._" %01 | @.MMM%%%HOU_ @MM“MMN | Gwbpoy Hm_«wi ey NWFE
| | 1
] e Moy | mer | T et o o
- - I i L s .- i S Tl ST i - ",
/ Q\ | NVAWQ et _\Suﬁ §\Q y g\% AT \é 10 :o.ﬁ:.umwa_r «%W Q\\k
e s —_— e AT LB ) [ o N A S
T e e PRI 7
_— b [ A——— 7 L = At I BRI P oy
w _,| §§\ U/ 7D f\\\ur &T\NS 1yauag u._a_d
t % L | Fo cc_izunvﬁ N\ Q #
CINTL N T wors 77
= m¥ T ‘..__wwmu.m...:...unm = _r
I o o .3 :ozacumma WN\E\W
_, ,” \/\ w \A ﬂ_ Ew;p #
| (S L i I - - e i)
m _ _ U@ SHand | _
| | i o :9.3:033
) E— e .&g
| _ \/\_ .,f e_@am_
f, _ FSas—————— . _iim_wwcw.m nd _.WN. %N
Q ., 10 uondusaQ \ \&
[T —— !l{lr T St o T SR it i I s !
- a S dswlh U L A v\A\Q w17
T N W S— R S R _» S ) e e # ]
| MM%MM”M | Z%”,o_rﬂu _ >uwu=nE.w~._ .uuﬂzc..mo.nm 4, mc.mvo,_ _ sjeop H SN ,f ca.-m:m_nuﬁca.-a:umwﬁ em:unuw | oeq #
eam—— N Y - PO FE—— ST wr
,_ \.Mn“g\% ,WNW. Biupu3 pouad Aed ﬁ\ﬁ\\ w\wg \.\W& DI M
L

,.mm:.o,_.:_@?mmzm@xm_mumzws quvOg 1014151 SFIAYIS

ALINNWINOD FTVONTTIH



M‘“m,l,}wwﬂmmmméi T ) o o - i = _
bunoaiu pieog jxeu ayj je pajuasaid aq 0} painbad podai jeqiah Jo :@.__S\,_....._ £l T pigog ay) j0 990D J0H PY 4
o T SioppenG JO pieog oW AQ paAcidde-a:d CEETR T, puwsia o) pajejRd wieiboid Buiuiel /IEUILIAS/EoUBIBJUGD T
ﬁli-%cs_oé_ SIaPEU Ul S)Salajul Ypm UGHEZIUEDIO/M BUBS3W T i A preog £0106 1 uouongesaiday 'Q
Kpoq jeiapag 10 3elS E5071 P OUSON 1| - T T UBAS UG QN 1€ UONEIUSIdRY D
T ‘ Liliil i JuaA3 oangd g

Py umoig Aq pawaaocb punpaly oNand v

L o - wody - o

meq o - R B et B .
—Se/EY AT I T7OR

e T I M e
sbunasiy asuadx3

Rl @33:2.:502 Q0 _ m....%%”._
40 # 12301 1oL ﬁ

| L W.mou\\:mg&@d& VWN%@‘ Wauag o1and i
7 e

s|eal 1e10) i

B /AN C I I W = L " 7"
Zoy g Ay T S sy
s ﬁélpiam R _1_-_\@§3§§ org—= =5 Ve
= o o --h\mﬂﬁtﬁ%.\%%\ghww@k —swasid| /],
3 __: I el === L
el 1 9 1 L PO e

g e 10 )y s el ST/

. X , ’ W\l@g W1 JSIDUT) yuoA3
A—— 5 Nﬂ)\% Q\Mﬂ § %&Ng Wauag SNand
m@( ST/,

j0 uonduosag

% T \ g Il:lew ll.i.la llmul.-i.é\ %%xél % 1@@\%%} YusA3

| . o B -

obajed | N/A llBD
asuadx3 | 2uUOyd N/A ssinquilsy Buibpo M e SaN “ uoneuejdxguondussag asuadx3y a1

!]an““\q mlim “\Q\N@dl N &\Q Biupug pouad Aed o ﬂ m M “ Nw “ . awen
 ¥3HONOA 3SN3dX3 ¥IAWIW GHVOS 15141610 SIDIAYIS ALINNMWNOD FTVANTTIH

e e o e o et

e e i




A0J ¥IW01SN
1101 5411 WOLSND
- 1
(B2°Gk% [PIO1'19°)$ S411)207] |
(A bb$ [PI101°GR 9% SAI[)2BI( |
(8/°€F$ T®101"1)°G% S4T])aGI[ |

LB AQCRASN
IRl Oolgng

QUHSYALSEW ASHH! ‘NddB
Eag , 1B
CLAcadzanuBINeey 4]

. 8 e ]
vn8d 1181

) . 4480
Dmm_mmmm%mm:m@mm%mammnamEmwmmﬂ
2[a]2]els 18 818 o0 ] AL
B181FBRARAERY a1
Jenss| :8pol
INI/HLINE (asuvdsay

8 sdaqung yojeq

\ L5ELER 8po) Cying
«, 500 ‘NB1S
‘4149 (61U
066Ge#2enesvnsns j unoooy
ﬁhbu._wumﬂz _mw\.,_m.—. _u._mu
g i uotjoesued|

aleg 1 roe.aan

“10dd | [eutwis]
9eLl (0] eotas]
QGiCasweresennn (1] jueynasy
b:£8:E1 §762/52/88
INTMAd4d

LIT1-G8 (1£8)
OFGEG B ‘AR B1Uay

BAY se.iny pgg
uspdaeq e



Helendale CSD October 2025
Director Cardenas Report

California Special Districts Association

2025 Annual Conference & Exhibitor Showcase
The Leadership Conference for Special Districts
Monterey, CA | August 25 - 28, 2025

Below are a couple of the takeaways from this year’s annual conference:

Ai Cybersecurity

Effective strategies for addressing misinformation and strengthening the credibility of special
districts were discussed. Notably. Al tools such as ChatGPT and 11 Labs can be utilized both to
generate convincing endorsements and. unfortunately. to produce misleading information. The
session highlighted the significance of search engine optimization (SEO) and securing a .gov
domain to enhance online visibility. Optimizing the landing page for search engines was

recommended. alongside minimizing reliance on articles and opinion sites.

The discussion addressed the role of community advocates and the importance of ethical standards
in social media communication. It examined the effects of misinformation on elections. the need
for transparency and trust with the community. and offered practical suggestions for enhancing
online credibility. including the possible appointment of a misinformation officer. Additionally. the
conversation covered strategies such as initially disabling comments on platforms to manage
content. directing feedback via designated channels. and noted challenges in maintaining original
content quality due to watermarking and increased internet clutter. The participants also discussed
digitizing historical documents for preservation and research purposes. while considering ADA
compliance issues. mentioned upcoming Al tools aimed at addressing these concerns. and

encouraged districts to contribute their historical documents.

We assessed real and Al-generated images. noting key signs of fakes. Current Al models struggle
with depth perception and realistic textures: earlier versions had difficulty rendering fingers or
details like billboards. Newer models are improving these flaws. underscoring the need to pay

close attention to image context and details.

HR Best Practices for Special Districts
The presentation addressed critical employment policies. with particular focus on establishing
clear job descriptions. effective performance management protocols. and ensuring legal

compliance. Kev subjects addressed encompassed the clear definition of standards for professional



oulations. and completion of mandatory training programs
b h £ prog

behaviors. understanding leave reg
including harassment prevention and ethics courses. The mandated training courses include ethics

training for board members and harassment prevention for supervisors and employees.

The discussion highlighted the intricate nature of California labor laws, the critical need for
ongoing policy revisions. and the impact of new regulations such as SB 1343. Additionally. it
stressed the importance of sustaining competitive compensation structures. implementing regular
employee performance assessments. and fostering continuous professional growth to enhance
retention. Participants were encouraged to remain attentive and proactive in applying best human

resources practices.

It also outlined the requirements for workplace violence prevention training, which is mandatory
for organizations with ten or more employees. and emphasizes the significance of developing and

disseminating a comprehensive violence prevention plan.



N’?)—
%

COMMU
19141810

Helendale Community Services District

Date: October 2, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Cheryl Vermette, Administrative Services Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #6
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Landscape Updates for Community
Center

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff seeks input from the Board regarding this matter.

STAFF REPORT:

In 2013, the landscape at the District office was installed through grant funding from the Mojave
Water Agency. The design emphasized drought-tolerant principles and water conservation.

In 2014, a memorial tree grove was established north of the Community Center building as part of
an Eagle Scout Project, intended to honor community members and provide a peaceful space for
reflection. With the current design in place for over a decade, both areas are in need of significant
refreshing. In addition, Staff is proposing to simplify the design to reduce costs related to upkeep
and maintenance.

If the Board concurs with this project, Staff will seek bids for the renovation of each area. Staff
does not have the capacity to complete this project in-house. This is not a project listed on the
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Parks, however, due to the high visibility of the Community
Center, Staff feels this maintenance project is important as it is located at the entrance to the
community. Over the past decade, both areas have become increasingly difficult to maintain and
no longer reflect the professional and welcoming image expected of the District. Following is an
outline of the current issues noted by Staff:

Front Landscaping
o There has not been the staff time to actively maintain the plants with thinning, pruning and
replanting as needed
e There are frequent irrigation issues with the drip system
» Rock is missing in some areas, showing the sand and landscape cloth beneath the surface
o Plants are missing or dead

Memorial Tree Grove
e The areais covered with decorative rocks that are difficult to walk on and prone to weed
growth, which are very difficult to remove from the rocks.
e The uneven walking path creates a challenge for visitors, especially those with mobility
concerns.



Staff recommends simplifying both spaces to reduce maintenance and increase usability and curb
appeal. Following are some ideas:

Front Landscaping:

* Remove the majority of the plants in the front landscape, limiting the types of
plants to a few varieties that need minimal maintenance; and planting in one
section of the landscape rather than throughout

» Replace rocks with decomposed granite to help with weed control

* Repair and simplify irrigation system

Memorial Tree Grove:
» Remove or replace the existing rock ground cover with DG which is a more walkable
and weed-resistant surface. Use a groundcover adhesive to create a hard surface
that will inhibit weed growth and reduce maintenance.

FISCAL IMPACT: To Be Determined

POSSIBLE MOTION: Direct Staff to seek bids for the renovation of the Community Center
landscaped areas

ATTACHMENTS: Photos of the landscaping












iy

el




4 SERVic,

fy
)

COMMUN,
10141610

Helendale Community Services District

| HELENDALE |
DATE: October 2, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #7
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding District Electronic Sign Policy and
Placement of Signage on District Property

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff seeks input from the Board regarding this item.

Staff Report
This item was requested to be discussed by a Board member and has been agendized as a review

of the District’s electronic sign policy and discussion of the placement of signs on District property
by others.

Electronic Sign Policy:

The Sign Usage Policy was originally adopted in April 2014, and later modified in 2018 to allow for
the addition of the monthly USDA food give-away program held in the community. The policy was
written to outline the purpose and use of the sign and to provide parameters for posting
messages. Prior to the adoption of the policy the District received requests to post game
schedules, birthdays, etc. on the sign and it was determined that establishing clear guidelines was
the prudent course of action to provide guidance. Since the policy was adopted it has provided
clarity on the usage of the electronic sign.

The sign policy is attached to this agenda item for the Board’s information.

Signage on District Property:

At the last Board meeting a member of the public requested permission to place a sign on District
property that directed people to a business located on an adjacent street. The District does not
have a policy regarding this and Staff wanted to seek direction from the Board as to whether this is
a use that you wish to permit. The District owns numerous properties in the community including
along Vista and Jordan Roads and along Helendale Road north of the SLA Equestrian area and
then to the south near Shadow Mountain Road.

The salient questions are: 1) Does the Board wish to allow for the posting of signage on District-
owned properties; and 2) if allowed, what are the parameters for such signage.

Staff seeks direction from the Board regarding this matter.



FISCAL IMPACT: NA
POSSIBLE MOTION: At the pleasure of the Board

ATTACHMENTS: Electronic Signage Policy (dated 3/1/2018)



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Electronic Sign Policy and Procedures

Section1. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to outline the use of the District’s Electronic Sign located at 26540
Vista Road. The Helendale CSD digital sign is a resource for the HCSD to share information and
promote programs sponsored by the District

Section 3. Users

The electronic sign is primarily for the use of the Helendale Community Services District.
However, it is understood that on occasion public service announcements are an appropriate
addition to the District’s messages. Therefore, a list of approved users is as follows:

Helendale Community Services District

County of San Bernardino — Public Safety Announcements
County, State or Federal Agency Emergency Announcements
U.S.D.A. Food Distribution Events

B Wb

Section 2. Guidelines
A. Content Guidelines:

1. The digital sign use policy prohibits the use of the sign to promote commercial
activities or advertisements.

2. The creation of content for display on the Digital Signage system is the
responsibility of the group presenting the information to the community.

3. Content must be submitted electronically a minimum of 5 business days prior to
the first date the content is to be displayed on the Digital Signage system.

4. Announcements will run for a maximum of 7 days.

5. Announcements will be posted no more than two weeks prior to the event date
and are removed automatically at midnight the day the event concludes.

6. Approved organizations may post one advertisement per event on the digital
signage display based upon availability.

7. The Helendale Community Services District reserves the right to refuse, edit or
remove digital signage content for any reason.

- ]
Electronic Sign Policy 3/1/2018 Page 1



8. Helendale CSD reserves the right to determine what is appropriate for posting,
and choose when a posting will appear in the announcement rotation.

9. The Helendale Community Services District reserves the right to determine what
content is displayed and determine the duration, dates, and times content is
displayed.

10. Messages are on a first come first served basis. The digital sign will display a
maximum of 8 slides per rotation cycle, only one panel will be available for any
organization outside of the Helendale CSD, unless there is an emergency
notification.

11. Slides are typically displayed for 5-10 seconds.

12. Written messages may not exceed 14-18 characters per line, maximum 4 lines.

13. Content that violates the digital signage policy or does not meet the content
requirements will not be posted.

B. Priority of displayed messages
1. Emergency Information

2. Helendale CSD Announcements
3. Helendale CSD Sponsored Events
4. Other Government notices

Section 4. District Discretion

All non-CSD signage will be posted at the sole discretion of the District. The District’s General
Manager in his/her sole discretion will determine the content for display on the electronic sign
in accordance with this policy.

Section 5. Restrictions

Nothing in this Policy is to be construed as restricting the posting of any organization’s
messages in other locations.

Section 6. Entire Policy

This policy includes in entirety the policy for the District electronic sign.

_ - .
Electronic Sign Policy 3/1/2018 Page 2



sERVIa e

NI)-}_

COMMU
1on1510 ®

Helendale Community Services District

DATE: October 2, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Craig Carlson, Water Operations Manager

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #8
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Water Pipeline for Treatment and
Blending

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff seeks input from the Board regarding this item.

STAFF REPORT:

The District was informed that due to the level of Manganese in Well 13, a blending plan is
required prior to it being put into production. Previously, Well 6 had a mandatory blending plan
that required it to be blended with Well 4 prior to the first customer service. Well 4A is long
overdue for rehabilitation. In the event that Well 4 were to go off line, then Well 1A would be the
only well to service the community’s needs. In an effort to provide redundancy and plan for the
future inevitability of PFAS treatment, Staff would like to proceed with the engineering necessary
for the pipeline to connect Wells 1A, 2, 4A and 13. Well 2 has been placed on emergency standby
status due to iron and Manganese levels. It is possible that through blending, that source of
supply could be put back into service. Fortunately, Wells 1A and 4A are non-detect for both of the
referenced constituents.

Attached is a drawing of the proposed location of the pipeline. If this concept is approved by the
Board, Staff will seek professional services for the design. If it exceeds the General Manager’s
authority, the proposal will be brought back to the Board for consideration and possible approval.
If it is below the GM’s signing authority, the engineering will be completed and Staff will request
approval to circulate a Request for Proposals (RFP) for construction in the near future. In the
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) the pipeline is contemplated for FY 27, however, the rehabilitation
of Well 4A is scheduled for FY26 and is long overdue. Based upon the level of Manganese in Well
13, Staff is recommending that the pipeline project be prioritized for this fiscal year. It would be
prudent to complete the pipeline project as soon as possible to provide redundancy and allow for
the rehabilitation of Well 4A.

Updated Manganese Regulations:

On October 7', 2025, the State Water Resources Control Board will be possibly changing the
notification level and response level of manganese in the state of California. The new proposed
notification level will be .05 milligrams per liter (mg/L) and the response level will be .20 milligrams
per liter (mg/L). Currently, well 13 manganese levels have ranged between .11mg/L - .19mg/L.



With these levels the district would be able to put well 13 into the system with public notification
of the manganese levels above the notification level. However, State Water Resources Control
Board will also be proposing to change manganese from a secondary maximum contaminant
(SMCL) to a maximum contaminant (MCL) which will require remediation with treatment or
blending. We have been told by the SWRCB supervising engineer that we will have to treat / blend
for Manganese since we are so close to the maximum proposed MCL. Staff will have a follow-up
meeting with SWRCB after the MCL is set by the State Board.

FISCAL IMPACT: To Be Determined
POSSIBLE MOTION: Proceed with seeking engineering services for pipeline project

ATTACHMENTS: Pipeline conceptual alignment






sERVIp,

Q @

F3

ﬁx’* Helendale Community Services District

HELENDALE

DATE: October 2, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #9
Discussion Only Regarding Review of Resolution 2012-06: A Resolution of the Board
of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Establishing a Policy for
District Reserves

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
This item is for the Board’s information.

STAFF REPORT:

The Reserve policy was adopted by the Board in 2012 during a time when the state was
threatening to raid the reserve funds of special districts, counties and cities in an effort to balance
the state-wide budget. Based upon recommendation from our auditor at that time the attached
policy was developed that provides specific allocations for both the water and wastewater funds.
No modifications have been made to the policy since initial adoption, however, the policy was
reviewed in 2019 and 2024 with no recommended changes by the Board. This is being presented
for the benefit of the new Board members and management staff as a review of the policy, the
underpinning of which is to ensure solvency for the District. Further, it provides information to the
public as to why the District has the amount of funds on hand. Without understanding the cost of
infrastructure replacement, one would think that the District’s fund balances might be excessive.
While it may appear that we have a healthy reserve fund, as you can see from the data below, we
do not meet the envisioned minimum reserve amounts for water or wastewater funds.

Below is the current analysis based upon the FY26 budget and the most recent FY24 audit.

Water total Low High
Reserve for Operations S 600,000 | S 1,200,000
Reserve for Replacement | S 1,543,573 | S 3,087,145
Reserve for Disaster S 1,257,700 | S 1,257,700
S 3,401,272 $ 5,544,845

Wastewater total Low High
Reserve for Operations S 475,000 | S 950,000
Reserve for Replacement | $ 1,886,589 | S 3,773,178
Reserve for Disaster S 1,537,189 | § 1,537,189
S 3,898,777 S 6,260,366



CASH BALANCES BY FUND AS OF 9/18/2025

£138.609
$91 0pp E——

$786,751
$127.515 - SseSld
$685,365 o
$167,201 g
$337,512 ] )
$342,076 9335128 230,314 & 2
$379,789 $319,106 S & <
0 5] b5
4 P o N o
§1185%8 & g © 3
© . g @ = =
$388.557 s < § & b
< o ] @ 5
ES g 0
2 8 5 i
r'\
3 o)
<
: .
$18,400
2017 2018 2018 2020 2021 2022 2024 2025
B Water Sewer Park @ Property Rental SW

The target water reserves are $3.4 million to $5.5 million and the target wastewater reserves are $3.5 to
$6.2 million. As of the last Board meeting water reserves and cash were $4.4 million, however, the water
rights purchase of $2.2 million was completed this past week which will reduce the reserves to $2.2 million.
The wastewater reserves and cash were at $3.7 million which is just above the minimum threshold.

Resolution 2012-06 is attached for your review along with the original staff report to provide context for
the board discussion.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

POSSIBLE MOTION: At the pleasure of the Board

ATTACHMENTS: 2025 Analysis of Reserve Fund Options

Resolution 2012-06
Original Staff report (dates 6/21/2012)



Jad 198png sdo

99£'09Z'9 S TIT'Z8S‘E S
68T°LEST S| 68TLEST S 421ses|g 40§ dnIDsAY
BLT'ELL'E S | 685'988°T S | 3uswadeiday Joy aniasay
000056 S | EEE'8GT S suonesadQ Joj an1asay
r_m_I MO |e103 Jajemoalse
48 27 S TLT'TOV'E S
00£°£82'T S| 00282 S I915BS1Q 10} 9AI9SDY
SPT'L80'E S| ELS'EVS'T S | wawade|day Joj aniasay
000'002°T S | 000°009 S suonesadQ 404 anIasay
ysiH MO |e10} 1a1ep
68T'LES'T  $|988'TLEST S (0T 8d) upne gzA4 131BM31SE AN
wouJj syasse |eyded
a|qeldaadap ejog
00L°£ST'T S| 866'9/5°CT S (0T 8d) Mpne €zA4 SERLAN
wioJj s1asse |euded
a|qeaidap |ejo|
%0T v88'8Y6°LT S jue|d |eaisAyd 1915es1(] 10} 9AI953Y
[eu1S140 JO %0T
Ja21sesiq 10j 9AI9SDY
8LT'ELL'E  $|098'S6E'E S| ZvS'8TIOE L06'€92'C S| 685°988'T S| SSE9VS'L S UpNY €202 Jalemaise
SPT'L80'€ S| TeEv'8LL'T S| 91L'691'C (8TCS8'T S| ELS'EPST S| T6TVLID S Upny €702 J1BM
%05 %St %0 %0€ %ST 99'0CL €T S uonenaidaq| uswade|day Joy an1asay
palejnwnioy
1uawWade|day 10} dNIASAY
000°056S £99°T6/5 £€E'€€9S 000'S4¥S £EE'BSTS 0000061 S [¥@8png 9z0z 131SEMIISEAN
000°00Z'TS 000°000°TS 000°008% 0000098 00000Z% 000°00t‘ S |398png 9z0¢ FEICIT
owg ouwlg owy owg yiuow JA 1ad 188png do suonesadQ Joj an1asay

suonesadQ 10j an1asay




Y,

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR DISTRICT RESERVES

WHEREAS, this Board of Directors is charged with responsibility for providing
potable water, wastewater treatment, solid waste services, street lighting, and graffiti removal
services, and developing and maintaining parks and recreation services, to and for customers
located within the District's boundaries; for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair
and replacement of facilities to treat, store, transport and deliver water to District customers;
for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of facilities to treat
wastewater; and for the construction, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of park
facilities; for the operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of solid waste facilities; and
for the maintenance and operation of street lighting; and for the collection and accumulation of
revenues necessary to accomplish these purposes; and

WHEREAS, the implementation of District policy over a period of many years as
resulted in the accumulation of funds to be utilized for a variety of District activities and to
protect the District's customers and taxpayers from the financial impacts of catastrophic events
and from fluctuations in District expenses; and

WHEREAS, this Board wishes to provide for the creation of certain unrestricted
reserve accounts, and to set forth in writing the District's policy regarding the accumulation of
reserves, the purposes for which they may be expended, and the levels which the District should
strive to maintain;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Helendale
Community Services District hereby provides for the deposit of revenue into certain restricted
funds, the creation of certain unrestricted reserve accounts, and the accumulation and
administration of reserves in each, as follows:

1. Unrestricted Reserves.
a) Reserve for Operations. A. "Reserve for Operations" is hereby created for the
District's general account, to which the Board may appropriate unrestricted District
revenues. Each such Reserve for Operations may be utilized to pay the cost of operating
the District's general system, including unanticipated costs of operation. The District shall
endeavor to maintain in each Reserve for Operations an amount sufficient to pay for a
minimum of three months of normal operation but not exceed six months of normal
operation. However, funds appropriated to any Reserve for Operations may be accessed
at any time for any other District purpose, upon approval by the Board, Funds




Resolution 2012-06

2,

appropriated to a Reserve for Operations may be invested in the same manner as other
District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon shall be credited to the District's
Administrative General Fund.

b) Reserve for Replacement, A "Reserve for Replacements” is hereby created for
the District's general account to which the Board of Directors may appropriate
unrestricted District revenues. Each Reserve for Replacements may be utilized to replace
the District's physical plant, as needed. The District shall endeavor to maintain in each
Reserve for Replacements an amount approximately equal to twenty-five percent (25%),
not to exceed fifty percent (50%), of the total accumulated amount of depreciation of
the District's physical plant for the District's general system and as reflected in the annual
audit of the District Presented to the Board each year, plus 100% of the prior year’s
depreciation. However, the funds appropriated to each Reserve for Replacements may
be accessed at any time for any other District purpose, upon approval by the Board.
Funds appropriated to a Reserve for Replacements may be invested in the same manner
as other District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon shall be credited to the District’s
Administrative General Fund.

c) Reserve for Disaster Response, A "Reserve for Disaster Response" is hereby
created for the District's general account to which the Board of Directors may
appropriate unrestricted District revenues. Each Reserve for Disaster Response may be
utilized to procure such equipment and supplies, perform such repairs, employ such
personnel, and take such other measures as may be necessary or appropriate in the
event of a disaster or calamity requiring District response. The District shall endeavor to
maintain in each Reserve for Disaster Response an amount approximately equal to Ten
Percent (10%) of the original cost of the District's physical plant for the District's general
system and as reflected in the annual audit of the District presented to the Board each
year. However, the funds appropriated to each Reserve for Disaster Response may be
accessed at any time for any other District purpose, upon approval by the Board. Funds
appropriated to a Reserve for Disaster Response may be invested in the same manner as
other District surplus funds, and the earnings thereon shall be credited to the District's
Administrative General Fund.

Additional Accounts. In addition to the unrestricted accounts identified above, the Board

of Directors may approve the creation of such additional accounts, whether temporary or
permanent (such as Capital Improvement Projects and system update/replacement projects
identified in the Budget), as the Board deems necessary or appropriate, by amendment to this
resolution or by simple motion. In such event, the Board will identify the purposes, for which
such additional accounts are created, provide guidance as to the amount which the District
should endeavor to maintain in each such account, and establish the limits and restrictions

pertaining thereto.



Resolution 2012-06

3. Annual Reports. Each year the District's General Manager shall provide the Board of
Directors with a report indicating the beginning and ending balance for each of the reserve
funds or accounts created pursuant to this resolution and the purposes for which expenditures
have been made therefrom and shall make recommendations to replenish or augment fund or

account balances as appropriate.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 21st day of June, 2012 by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

President, Board of Directors
ATTEST:

Secretary, Board of Directors



4y
™
X

5

COMMU
..“ /)l-
OLS\O

g

4

1
i .

"2 Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 21, 2012

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Paul E. Harmon, Finance Manager
SUBJECT: Agenda item #14 — Resolution 2012-06

Discussion and possible adoption of Resolution 2012-06; A Resolution of the
Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Establishing a Palicy
for District Reserves.

Staff Recommendation
Adopt Resolution 2012-06 establishing the Helendale Community Services District policy for District

reserves.

Staff Report
The State of California is in the middle of its annual budget crisis and is searching for funds to help balance

its General Fund. Among the proposals being batted around in Sacramento is the taking of Special District
reserves. The thinking is that special districts have the ability to raise rates and can, therefore, make up the
loss of funds better than the State of California can. The State Legislature is also reviewing the taking of
“Pass Through Revenue”. This is property taxes collected by the counties and passed on to cities and
smaller governmental agencies, such as special districts. As of now the governor is opposed to taking these
funds and is at odds with the legislature over this.

In order to protect the District reserve funds, our auditors, Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, have
recommended establishing a reserve policy that earmarks the money held by the District, making it hard to
the State to take away undesignated funds. Other special districts are taking this same approach to prevent

the loss of funds.

The District has an estimated $2.7 million in reserve funds. This policy establishes the following reserves:

1) Reserve for Operations — establishes a reserve to pay the cost of operations for each fund for up to
six (6) months of operating costs.

2) Reserve for Replacement — establishes a reserve up to 50% of the value of physical plant for each
fund.

3) Reserve for Disaster Response — establishes a reserve to procure equipment and supplies, employ
personnel or any other measure necessary during a declared emergency. The recommended
amount is approximately 10% of physical plant assets.

4) Reserve for Capital Improvement Projects — establishes a reserve to pay for budgeted projects as
defined in the annual Capital Improvement Projects Budget as approved by the Board.

5) Any other reserve as defined by the Board during the course of the fiscal year, such as a reserve for

issued debt.



The resolution provides for amendment of the reserves, their amounts, the appropriation of funds,
definition of purposes, and setting limits and restrictions by resolution or by simple motion. An annual
report is required indicating the beginning and ending balance for each of the reserve funds or accounts
created pursuant to this resolution. Staff will provide the initial reserve balances report at the second

meeting in July, 2012.

Fiscal Impact
The District has an estimated $2.7 million in reserve funds. The resolution will earmark these funds into

specific reserves for its general government funds and its enterprise funds.

Suggested Board Action

A motion to adopt Resolution 2012-06 of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District Establishing a Policy for District Reserves.



	10022025.pdf
	SKM_C554e25092916350.pdf

